March 7, 2019 Approved Minutes

Official Proceedings
Pontiac City Council
74" Session of the Tenth Council

A Special Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Thursday,
March 7, 2019 at 12:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams.

Call to Order
Roll Call

Members Present: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward.
Mayor Waterman was present.
Clerk announced a quorum.

Communication from Planning
Pontiac Medical Marihuana Facilities Ordinance

19-71 Approve the Agenda. Moved by Councilperson Woodward and second by
Councilperson Pietila.

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Tylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Carter
No: None
Motion Carried.

19-72 Motion to limit Debate to 10 minutes on Medical Marihuana Facilities Ordinance
No. #1. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks.

Ayes: Pietila, Tylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter and Miller
No: None
Motion Carried.

19-73 Motion to extend the Moratorium on the Acceptance of Applications for Medical
Marihuana Facilities until March 15, 2019. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by
Councilperson Taylor-Burks.

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Williams, Carter and Miller
No: Woodward and Pietila

Abstain: Waterman

Motion Carried.

19-74 Ordinance to approve a Zoning Text Amendment of the City’s Zoning Ordinance to
include Medical Marihuana Facilities within the City of Pontiac. (This is the Planning Commission’s

1




March 7, 2019 Approved Minutes

recommendation that was adopted by the Planning Commission on March 6, 2019.) Moved by
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Waterman.,

See Attachment Ordinance 1

Ayes: Waterman, Woodward and Pietila
No: Williams, Carter, Miller and Taylor-Burks
Ordinance Failed.

19-75 Ordinance to approve a Zoning Text Amendment of the City’s Zoning Ordinance to
include Medical Marihuana Facilities within the City of Pontiac. (This is the Revised Carter/City
Council Ordinance that was a communication sent from the City Council to the Planning Commission on
February 26, 2019. This Ordinance and amendment was moved by Council woman Taylor-Burks and
seconded by Councilperson Miller on February 5, 2019 to be referred to the Planning Commission to be
considered at its Meeting on March 6, 2019 at 6:30 p.m. Council approved the motion.) Moved by
Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks.

See Attachment Ordinance 2
Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller and Tylor-Burks
No: Woodward, Pietila and Waterman
Ordinance Passed.

Seven (7) individuals addressed the body during public comment.

President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 1:15 p.m.

GARLAND S. DOYLE
INTERIM CITY CLERK




Ordinance |

3rd Planning Commission Medical Marihuana Ordinance
Zoning Text Amendment ~

CITY OF PONTIAC
ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF PONTIAC ZONING ORBRINANCE TO INCLUDE USES OF MEDICAL
MARIHUANA FACILITIES IN DESIGNATED OVERLAY DISTRICTS.

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS:

Amend Article 2 Chapters 1 and 2 Section 2,101 Table 1 and Sectlon 2.203 Table 2 Zoning Districts Is
amended to add:

Abbrevlation General Zoning Districts Abbreviation Speclal Purpose Zoning
Districts

To Remain The | To Remain The Same -- --

Same -- --

MMOD Medical Marlhuana
Overlay District

Amend Article 2 Chapter 2 — Section 2.203 Tahle 2 (Uses Permitted By District)

Commerglal, Offlce, and Service Uses
Residential Industrial
Commercial Districts
Districts Districts

R4 R2 R-3 C-0 C1 C-2 C-3 C-4 M1 M-2 IP1
Section

Medical Marihuana Grower o 0 o
2.544
Section

Medical Marihuana Processor o o0 o
2.545
Medical Marihuana Provisioning Section

o 0 0 ©0 o0 o

Centers 2,546
Medical Marihuana Safely Sectlon

o o o0 0o 0 o0 o
Compliance Facilily 2.547
Medical Marihuana Secure Section

© 0 0 ©0o ©0o 0 o
Transporter 2,548

o = Permltted by Special Exemption



Article 2 Chapter 5 - Development Standards for Specific Uses to add Sections 2.544, 2,545, 2,546,
2.547, and 2.548 as follows:

Section 2.544 - Medical Marihuana Grower Facilities

Grower means a commercial entity that cultivates, dries, trims, or cures and packages marihuana for
sale to a Processor or Provisioning Center. As used in this ordinance, Grower shall include Class A
Growers, Class B Growers, and Class C Growers,

%

Class A Grower means a Grower license to grow not more than 500 marihuana

plants,
Class B Grower means a Grower licensed to grow not more than 1,000

marihuana plants.
Class C Grower means a Grower licensed to grow not more than 1,500
marihuana plants.

A. General Provisions

1.

¥}

Consumption, smoking, and inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be
prohibited on the premises of a Medical Marihuana Grower Facility, and a sign
shall be posted on the premises of each facility indicating that consumption is

_prohibited on the premises;

The premises shall be open for Inspection and/or investigation at any time by
City investigators during the stated hours of operation and as such other times
as anyone is present on the premises

All activity related to the Medical Marihuana growing shall be done indoors;
Any Medical Marihuana Grower Facility shall maintain a log book and/or
database identifying by date the amount of Medical Marihuana and the number
of Medical Marihuana plants on the premises which shall not exceed the
amount permitted under the Grower License issued by the State of Michigan.
This log shall be available to law enforcement personnel to confirm that the
Medical Marihuana Grower does not have more Medical Marihuana than
authorized at the location and shall not be used to disclose more information
than is reasonably necessary to verify the lawful amount of Medical Marihuana
at the Facility;

The Medical Marihuana Grower Facility shall comply at all times and in all
circumstances with the MMMA, MMFLA, and the general rules of the
department of licensing and regulatory affairs, as they may be amended from
time to time,

B. Security

1.

2

Medical Marihuana Grower Facility shall continuously monitor the entire
premises on which they are operated with surveillance systems that include
security cameras that operate 24- hours a day, 7-days a week. The video
recordings shall be maintained in a secure, off-site location for a period of 30
days, and must be coordinated with the 0.C. Sherriff Department;

Any usable Medical Marihuana remaining on the premises of a Medical
Marihuana Grower while the Medical Marihuana Facility is not in operation shall
be secured in a safe permanently affixed to the premises;




3. All Medical Marihuana shall be contained within the building in an enclosed,
locked Facility in accordance with the MMMA and MMELA, as amended;

C. Nuisance Prohibited

1. Medical Marihuana Grower Facilities shall be free from infestation by insects,
rodents, birds, or vermin or any kind;

2. Medical Marihuana Grower Facilities shall produce no products other than
useable Medical Marihuana intended for human consumption; and

3. No Medical Marihuana Grower shall be operated in a manner creating noise,
dust, vibration, glare, fumes, or odors detectable to normal senses beyond the
boundaries of the property on which the Medical Marihuana Grower is
operated,

D. Licensing
1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the
premises of a Medical Marihuana Grower Facility.
2. Medical Marihuana Grower uses are not permitted outside the Cesar Chavez,
Walton Blvd, and Silverdome Industrial Park Medical Marihuana Overlay
Districts.

H. Co-Location
1. There shall be no other accessory uses permitted within the same facility other
than those associated with a Processor and Provisioning Center.




Section 2,545 - Medical Marihuana Processor

Processor means a commercial entity that purchases marihuana from a Grower and that extracts resin
from the marihuana or creates a Marihuana-infused product for sale and transfer in packaged form to a

Provisioning Center.

A. General Provisions

1.

The Processor shall comply at all times and in all circumstances with the MMA,
MMFLA, and the general rules of the department of Iicenslng and regulatory
affairs, as they may be amended from time to time;

Consumption, smoking, and inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be
prohibited on the premises of Medical Marihuana Processor, and a sign shall be
posted on the premises of each Medical Marihuana Processor indicating that
consumption is prohibited on the premises;

The premises shall be open for inspection and/or investigation at any time by
City investigators during the stated hours of operation and as such other times
as anyone is present on the premises

Any Processor Facility shall maintain a log book and/or database identifying by
date the amount of Medical Marihuana and the number of Medical Marihuana
plants on the premises which shall not exceed the amount permitted under the
Processor license issued by the State of Michigan. This log shall be available to
law enforcement personnel to confirm that the Processor does not have more
Medical Marihuana than authorized at the location and shall not be used to
disclose more information than is reasonably necessary to verify the lawful
amount of Medical Marihuana at the Facility;

Processor Facilities shall produce no products other than useable Medical
Marihuana intended for human consumption.

B. Security

1.

Medical Marihuana Processor Facility shall continuously monitor the entire
premises on which they are operated with surveillance systems that include
security cameras that operate 24- hours a day, 7-days a week, The video
recordings shall be maintained in a secure, off-site location for a period of 30
days, and must be coordinated with the 0.C, Sherriff Department;

Any usable Medical Marihuana remaining on the premises of a Medical
Marihuana Processor while the Medical Marihuana Facility is not in operation
shall be secured in a safe permanently affixed to the premises;

All Medical Marihuana shall be contained within the building in an enclosed,
locked Facility in accordance with the MMMA and MMFLA, as amended.

C. Nuisance Prohibited

1.

Processor Facilities shall be free from infestation by insects, rodents, birds, or
vermin or any kind;

No Medical Marihuana Processor shall be operated in a manner creating noise,
dust, vibration, glare, fumes, or odors detectable to normal senses beyond the
boundaries of the property on which the Medical Marihuana Processor is
operated.




H. Co-Location
1. There shall be no other accessory uses permitted within the same Facility other
than those associated with a Grower and Provisioning Center;
2. The dispensing of Medical Marihuana at the Processor Facility shall be
prohibited.
I. Licensing
1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the
premises of a Medical Marihuana Grower Facility.
2. Medical Marihuana Processor uses are not permitted outside the Cesar Chavez,
Walton Blvd, and Silverdome Industrial Park Medical Marihuana Overlay
Districts.



Section 2.546 - Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center

Provisioning Center means a commercial entity that purchases marihuana froin a Grower or -
Processor and sells, supplies, or provides marihuana to registered qualifying patients, directly or
through the patients' registered primary caregivers. Provisioning Center includes any commercial
property where marihuana is sold at retail to registered, qualifying patients or registered primary
caregivers. A noncommercial location used by a primary caregiver to assist a qualifying patient
connected to the caregiver through the department's marihvana registralion process in accordance
with the MMMA is not a Provisioning Center for the purposes of this ordinance.

A. General Provisions
1. Medical marihuana Provisioning Centers shall be closed for business, and no

sale or other distribution of marihuana in any form shall occur upon the
premises between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m.

Consumption, smoking, and inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be
prohibited on the premises of a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center, and a
sign shall be posted on the premises of each Medical Marihuana Provisioning
Center indicating that consumption is prohibited on the premises; ’

The premises shall be open for inspection and/or investigation at any time by
City investigators during the stated hours of operation and as such other times
as anyone is present on the premises, '

B. Security
1. Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers shall continuously menitor the entire

premises on which they are operated with surveillance systems that include
security cameras that operate 24- hours a day, 7-days a week. The video
recordings shall be maintained in a secure, off-site location for a period of 30
days, and must be coordinated with the 0.C. Sherriff Department;

2, Any usable Medical Marihuana remaining on the premises of a Medical

Marihuana Provisioning Center while the Medical Marihuana Provisioning
Center is not in operation shall be secured in a safe permanently affixed to the
premises.

C. Drive-through

s

Drive-through windows on the premises of a Medical Marihuana Provisioning
Center shall not be permitted.

D. Nuisance Prohibited

1.

No Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center shall be operated in a manner
creating noise, dust, vibration, glare, fumes, or odors detectable to normal
senses heyond the houndaries of the property on which the Medical Marihuana
Provisioning Center is operated.

E. Co-Location

1.

There shall be no other accessory uses permitted within the same Facility other
than those associated with a Grower and Processor,




*F,

Licensing

1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the
premises of a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center

2. No more than five (5) Provisioning Centers shall be established in each of the
Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts including Cesar Chavez, Walton Blvd, and
C-2 Downtown Overlay Districts.

3. No more than five (5) Provisioning Centers shall be established in C-1, C-3, and
C-4 zoned properties outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts.




Section 2.547 - Medical Marihuana Safetly Compliance Facilities

Safety Compliance facility means a commercial entity that receives marihuana from a medical
marihuana facility or registered prirﬁaw caregiver, tests it for contaminants and for
tetrahydrocannabinol and other cannabinoids, returns the test results, and may return the marihuana to
a medical marihuana facility.

A. General Provisions _

1. Consumption, smoking, and inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be
prohibited on the premises of a Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility,
and a sign shall be posted on the premises of each Medical Marihuana Safety
Compliance Facility indicating that consumption is prohibited on the premises;

2. The premises shall be open for inspection and/or investigation at any time by
City investigators during the stated hours of operation and as such other times
as anyone is present on the premises;

3. Any Safety Compliance Facility shall maintain a log book and/or database
identifying by date the amount of Medical Marihuana on the premises and from
which particular source. The Facility shall maintain the confidentiality of
qualifying patients in compliance with the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act, as
amended.

B. Security

1. Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility shall continuously monitor the
entire premises on which they are operated with surveillance systems that
include security cameras that operate 24- hours a day, 7-days a week. The video
recordings shall be maintained in a secure, off-site location for a period of 30
days, and must be coordinated with the O.C. Sherriff Department;

2. Any usable Medical Marihuana remaining on the premises of a Medical
Marihuana Safety Compliance while the Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance
Facility is not in operation shall he secured in a safe permanently affixed to the
premises;

3. All Medical Marihuana shall be contained within the building in an enclosed,
locked Facility in accordance with the MMMA and MMFLA, as amended.

C. Nuisance Prohibited
1. No Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance shall be operated in a manner
creating noise, dust, vibration, glare, fumes, or odors detectahle to normal
senses beyond the boundaries of the property on which the Medical Marihuana

Safety Compliance is operated.

D. Licensing

1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the
premises of a Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility.

2. Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facilities that comply with the
regulations of this ordinance, state and local regulations are permitted in the
Cesar Chavez, Walton Blvd, and C-2-Downtown Medical Marihuana Overlay
Districts and in the C-1, C-3, and C-4 zoned properties outside the Medical
Marihuana Overlay Districts.




Section 2,548 - Medical Marihuana Secure Transporter

Secure Transporter means a commercial entity located in this state that stores marihuana and
transports marihuana between medical marihuana facilities for a fee. A Secure Transporter shall comply
at all times with the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act, the Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act,
the Marihuana Tracking Act and the general rules of the Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs.

A. General Provisions

1.

4,

Consumption and or use of marihuana shall be prohibited at a facility of a
Secure Transporter;

A vehicle used by a Secure Transporter is subject to administrative inspection by
a law enforcement officer at any point during the transportation of medical
marihuana to determine compliance with all state and local laws, rules,
regulations and ordinances;

A Secure Transporter licensee and each stakeholder shall not have an interest in
a Growing, Processor, Provisioning Center, or Safety Compliance Facility and
shall not be a registered qualifying patient or a registered primary caregiver.

A Secure Transporter shall enter all transactions, current inventory, and other
information as required by the state into the statewide monitoring system as
required by law.

B. Secure Storage

1,

Storage of medical marihuana by a Secure Transporter shall corply with the
following:
o The storage facility shall not be used for any other commercial purpose.
o The storage facility shall not be open or accessible to the general public,
o The storage facility shall be maintained and operated so as to comply
with all state and local rules, regulations and ordinance.
All marihuana stored within the facility shall be stored within enclosed locked
facilities in accordance with the MMMA as amended.
Onsite storage of vehicles is prohibited, except for secure transport vehicles.

C. Sanitation

1.

All persons working in direct contact with marihuana being stored by a Secure
Transporter shall conform to hygienic practices while on duty, including but not
limited to:

o  Maintaining adequate personal cleanliness;

o Washing hands thoroughly inadequate hand washing areas before
starting work and at any other time when the hands may have become
soiled or contaminated;

o Refrain from having direct contact with marihuana if the person has or
may have an illness, open lesion, including boils, sores or infected
wounds, or any other abnormal source of microbial contarination, until
the condition is corrected.




D. Transport Driver

E;

1. A Secure Transporter shall comply with all of the following:
o Each driver transporting marihuana must have a chauffeur's license
issued by the state;

o Each employee who has custody of marihuana or money that is related

to a marihuana transaction shall not have been convicted of or releas
from incarceration for a felony under the laws of this state, any other
state, or the United States within the past five (5) years;

ed

o  Each vehicle shall be operated with a two person crew with at least one

individual remaining with the vehicle at all times during the
transportation of marihuana.
2. A route plan and manifest shall be entered into the statewide monitoring

system, and a copy shall be carried in the transporting vehicle and presented to

a law enforcement officer upon request;

3. The medical marihuana shall be transported by one or more sealed containers

and not be accessible while in transit;
4. A secure transporting vehicle shall not bear markings or other indication that
is carrying medical marihuana or a marihuana infused product.

Licensing
1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the
premises of a Medical Marihuana Secure Transporter Facility.
2. Medical Marihuana Secure Transporter Facilities that comply with the
regulations of this ordinance, state and local regulations are permitted in the
Cesar Chavez, Walton Blvd, and C-2 Downtown Medical Marihuana Qverlay
Districts and outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts,

it

10




Article 3- Special Purposes — Zoning District is amended to add Chapter 11 as follows:
Chapter 11 - Medical Marihuana Overlay District

Section 3,1101 Intent

The purpose of the Medical Marihuana Overlay District (MMOD) is to provide for the placement of

Medical Marihuana related uses as authorized pursuant to MMFLA state regulations, with a goal of .

minimizing potential adverse impacts on adjacent property owners, residential neighborhoods, and the
City.

Section 3.1102 Medical Marihuana Overlay District Permitted Uses

The following uses are permitted in the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts, provided the development
also meets the Design & Building Standards set forth in Section 3.11010 of this ordinance.

1. Provisioning Center

2. Safety Compliance Facility
3. Secure Transporter

4, Grower

5. Processor

Section 3.1103 Medical Marihuana Uses Requiring Planning Commission Special Exception Permit

All Medical Marihuana uses are subject to Planning Commission approval following the Standards for
Approval of Section 6.303 for Special Exception Permits, and Article 2, Chapter 5, Development Standards
for Specific Uses

Section 3.1104 Standards for Special Exemption Approval

For consideration of Medical Marihuana uses by the Planning Commission, the Commission shall review
each application for the purpose of determining that each Medical Marihuana facility on its location will:

Not impact surrounding residential neighborhoods.

Provide easy access for patients with accessible parking.

Be adequately served by utilities with sufficient capacity.

Corridors and streets have the capacity to accommadate potential increases in traffic volumes.
Demonstrate a safe and security environment, and uphold the public welfare of the community.
Do not add unintended or impromptu costs to City and municipal services.

Comply with Section 6.303 Standards for Approval in the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance.

N s o

Section 3.1105 Licensing

1. Allregistered patients must present both their Michigan Medical Marihuana patient/caregiver
ID card and Michigan state 1D prior to entering restricted/limited areas or nonpublic areas of the
Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center.

2. Al operatars of medical marihuana facilities must acquire a State of Michigan & City of Pontiac
License.

3. All operators of a state licensed Medical Marihuana Facility must display the license in a public
common area, or area easily visible from inspectors and city officials.

11




Section 3.1106 Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts

Medical Marihuana Overlay District boundaries are established in the Medical Marihuana Overlay
District Map (See Figure 21.} in Section 7.301. The Medical Marihuana Overlay District Maps may he a
single sheet or composed of several map sheets, and shall be kept on record in the City of Pontiac Clerk
and Building Safety offices. Medical Marihuana uses are permitted in the following identified Medical
Marihuana Overlay Districts.

B wN e

Cesar Chavez

Silverdome Industrial Park
Walton Blvd

C-2 Downtown

The Overlay District is an effective regulatory tool to implement the establishment of Medial Marihuana
businesses in the City of Pontiac. An Overlay District is applied over one or more previously established
zoning districts, establishing additional or stricter regulations, standards and criteria for Medical
Marihuana uses in addition to those of the underlying zoning district.

Section 3.1107 MMOD Buffer Distance Restrictions

1.

The proximity of the proposed medical marihuana facility shall be not less than;

A. 1,000 feet from an operational public or private school.

B. 500 feet from an operational commercial childcare organization (non-
home occupation) that is licensed or registered with the State of
Michigan Department of Health and Human Services or Its successor
agency.

C. 500 feet from a public park with playground equipment.

D. 500 feet from a religious institution that is defined as tax exempt by the
Oakland County Assessor.

E. Provisioning Centers, Safety Compliance, and Secure Transporters
located outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts shall also
comply with the residential buffer distance restriction of 300 feet from R-
1, R-1A, R-1B, R-2, R-3, R-4, and R-5 residential-zoned property in the City
of Pontiac.

Such distance between the school, childcare center, public park, religious
institution, or a residential zoned property and the contemplated Medical
Marihuana facility location shall be measured along the centerline of the street
or streets of address between two fixed points on the centerline determined
by projecting straight lines, at right angles to the centerline, from the primary
point of ingress to the school, childcare center, religious institution, residential
dwell unit or from the playground equipment in a public pack, and from the
primary point of ingress to the Medical Marihuana facility along the centerline
to the primary site entrance driveway.

Vacant residential zoned lots shall be measured to the side yard setback as
defined in Article 2, Chapter 3, Section 2.301 Summary of Dimension Standards
of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance.

12




Section 3.1108 Co-Lacation

1. A maximum of two medical marihuana facilities with state operating licenses
may co-locate on a single parcel;

Z No two medical marihuana facilities of the same type may be located on the
same parcel, except where permitted by the MMFLA;

3. Consistent with the MMFLA, any combination of Grower, Processing, and

Provisioning Centers may operate as separate medical marihuana facilities in

a single physical location.

A. Provided that the Provisioning Center is incidental to the principal use
and that the total amount of internal floor areas of the structure devoted
to the Provisioning Center does not exceed 20% of the floor area of the

total establishment.

Section 3.1109 Space Separation

1. Unless permitted by the MMMA, public or non-public areas of the Medical
Marihuana Provisioning Center must be separated from restricted or non-
public areas of the Provisioning Center by a permanent barrier.

2. Unless permitted by the MMMA, no Medical Marihuana is permitted to he
stored or displayed in an area accessible to the general public;

3. Medical Marihuana may be displayed in a sales area only if permitted by the
MMMA. '

Section 3.11010 Building Design, Area, Height, Bulk, & Placement

1. Building and design immprovements must comply with the underlying zoning
requirements for Article 2, Chapter 4 Private Frontage Deign Standards and
the Specific Uses Development Standards outlined in Article 2, Chapter 5.

2. Floors, walis and ceilings shall be constructed in such a manner that they
may adequately cleaned and kept clean and in good repair;

3. Any buitdings, fixtures and other facilities shall be maintained in a sanitary
condition;

4, All necessary building, electrical plumbing and mechanical permits shall be

obtained for any portion of the structure in which electrical wiring, lighting
and/or watering devices that suppaort the cultivation, growing or harvesting
of marihuana are located.

5. If the provisions of the MMOD are silent on building and design
requirements, the requirements of the underlying district shall apply.
6. If the building and design requirements of the MMOD conflict with the

requirements of the underlying district, then the building and design
requirements of the MMOD shall supersede the underlying district
regulations.

p QOdor shall be managed through the installation of activated carbon filters
on exhaust outlets to the building exterior from any rooms used for
production, processing, testing, research, and warehousing. Negative air

13




10.

pressure shall be maintained within the rooms. Exhaust outlets shall be a
minimuim of 25 ft. from a property line.

An alternative odor control system may be approved by the building official
based on a report by a registered mechanical engineer licensed by the State
of Michigan, demonstrating that the alternative system will control odor
equally or better than the required activated carbon filtration system.
Generators must be installed to operate the air filter systems in case of
power outage or failure,

Exterior site lighting must be installed in site parking areas, egress, and
ingress areas. Lighting must be compliant with Article 4, Chapter 5 of the
Zoning Ordinance.

Section 3.11011 Disposal Of Waste

Section 3.11012 Signage

Disposal of Medical Marihuana shall be accomplished in a manner that
prevents its acquisition by any person who may not lawfully possess it and
otherwise in conformance with State law.

Litter and waste shall be properly removed and the operating systems for
waste disposal are maintained in an adequate manner as approved by the
City so that they do not constitute a source of contamination in areas where
medical marihuana is exposed;

That portion of the structure where the storage of any chemicals such as
herbicides, pesticides, and fertilizers shall be subject to inspection and
approval by the local Fire Department to ensure compliance with the
Michigan Fire Protection Code.

it shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with state or
local law, and Article 5 of the City of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance.
It shall be prohihited to use advertising material that is misleading,
deceptive, or false, or that is designed to appeal to minors or in violation of
LARA regulations.
it shall be prohibited to use the symbol or image of a marihuana leaf or the
medical “green” cross symbol in any exterior building signage.
a. The following sign language is not permitted in the City; -
Marihuana/Marijuana, Cannabis, Ganja, Dope, Roach, Hash,
Reefer or any other word/phrase with similar likeness.
No licensed Medical Marihuana Grower shall place or maintain, or cause to
be placed or maintained, an advertisement of medical marihuana in any form
or through any medium:
a.  Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a
public or private elementary, vocational or secondary school.
b.  Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center,
public swimming pool or a church or other structure in which
religious services are conducted.

14




Section 3.11013 Review Authority & Establishment

1.

The Planning Commission shall be the Special Exception and Site Plan Review
Authority for the Medical Marihuana uses in the Medical Marihuana Overlay

Districts;

A Special Exception Permit for medical marihuana uses require Public Notice

of 500 ft. from the proposed medical marihuana Facility;

All Medical Marihuana uses must be in accordance with the Special
Exemption Permit Review Standards outlined in Article 6, Chapter 3 the
Zoning Ordinance;

All Medical Marihuana uses must be in accordance with all applicable
General Provisions Standards outlined in Article 4 the Zoning Ordinance;

Herewithin, for all zoning districts with a permitted Medical Marihuana use,

all requirements of the underlying districts remain in effect, except where
these regulations provide an alternative to such requirements.

15




Article 7 — Definitions is amended to add Chapter 2, and Chapter 3 as follows:

Article 7 — Definitions | Chapter 2
Section 7.202 Commercial, Office, and Service Uses

A. Provisioning Center means a commercial entity that purchases marihuana from
a Grower or Processor and sells, supplies, or provides marihuana to registered
qualifying patients, directly or through the patients' registered primary
caregivers. Provisioning Center includes any commercial property where
marihuana is sold at retail to registered, qualifying patients or registered
primary caregivers.

o Anoncommercial location used by a primary caregiver to assist a
qualifying patient connected to the caregiver through the department's
marihuana registration process in accordance with the MMMA is not a
Provisioning Center for purposes of this ordinance.

B. Safety Compliance Facility means a commercial entity that receives marihuana
from a medical marihuana facility or registered primary caregiver, tests it for
contaminants and for tetrahydrocannabinol and other cannabinoids, returns the
test results, and may return the marihuana to the medical marihuana facility.

C. Secure Transporter means a commercial enlily located in this state that stores
marihuana and transports marihuana between medical marihuana facilities for a
fee.

Section 7.203 Industrial Uses

A.  Grower means a commercial entity that cultivates, dries, trims, or cures and
packages marihuana for sale to a Processor or Provisioning Center. As. used in
this ordinance, Grower shall include Class A Growers, Class B Growers, and Class
C Growers.

o Class A Grower means a Grower license to grow not more than 500
marihuana plants.

o Class B Grower means a Grower licensed to grow not more than 1,000
marihuana plants.

° Class C Grower means a Grower licensed to grow not more than 1,500
plants.

B. Processor means a commercial entity that purchases marihuana from a Grower
and that extracts resin from the marihuana or creates a Marihuana-infused
product for sale and transfer in packaged form to a Provisioning Center.’

16




Article 7 — Definitions | Chapter 3
Section 7.301 General Definitions

A. Cesar Chavez Medical Marihuana Overlay District (See Figure 19. Cesar Chavez
Medical Marihuana Overlay District)

B. Downtown Medical Marihuana Overlay District {See Figure 20. Downtown
Medical Marihuana Overlay District)

C. Medical Marihuana Overlay District Map indicates all areas within the City of
Pontiac where Medical Marihuana Facilities are permitted. (See Figure 21,
Medical Marihuana Overlay District Map)

D. Medical Marihuana Facility means a location at which a Grower, Processor.
Provisioning Center, Secure Transporter, or Safety Compliance facifity is licensed
to operate under the MMFLA,

E. MMFLA means the Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act, Act No, 281 of
the Public Acts of 2016, being sections 333.27101 to 333.27801 of the Michigan
Compiled Laws.

F. MMMA means the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act, Initiated Law 1 of 2008,
being sections 333.26421 to 333.26430 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

G. Silverdome Industrial Park Medical Marihuana Overlay District (See Figure 22,
Silverdome Industrial Park Medical Marihuana Overlay District)

H. Walton Blvd. Medical Marihuana Overlay District (See Figure 23, Walton
Medical Marihuana Overlay District)

**To he amended in alphabetical order**

17




3

_mnHI-.“ Im,Hi = = = 1= 7HH T [P T B R L (I e TN A, S T
e e e e e = | A T e e TR AN NN N 7
=EEE %i, EE S ISR NS SR
T e Ny
NN S N -7
NG NN

%
..\ .On\.\.;m.WW\n / %
\,\/(;\.\\\,vw\w\\\w\», y SRS k\\o
\;W«w“u.&,wq% X
P

\/f\/z\\,%\.w\w///f//oa
SR

e 5 |
\% ”%ﬂ & // Mrll...l.i....hm\\.\N.rll.um.ﬂmmh,mﬁll,.,r_

e e e e i =

Milos

0.38

Bt gl o |.r1r/r.

\

18

4.285

oA
(Flgure 19, Cesar Chavez Medical Marlhuana Overlay Distrlcts)

-
0 0.04760.005




Lo EETEs ONIESerTE i BN 7
I con ey e S B IR
\\...l = ; = s i SN,

s D= == ' =] |l - >

A gttt |
N >t R

It bt | ———
O T i 11
I ._, L_..II.J.|_,.

N 4;,(
XN b Ly - " y t
S0 . vy d L

e et e e

,
<. ] * . 5 . 2. —
= A AN ; ,\\.u-lljmupﬁﬂ.llﬂhhhlll..
, AN 2 o e -
oy Ay . e RO »
f ¢ % ., AN : ,.. . ... o> ~
ey 3

P |
. [ .

el e

(AP 4

PE Ak %

RN S SR
S ===
Bp e e
O e == .\\\N.“\W\\H
il R0 =G \\\\\.\\. =
3 _ll._ ] L \.\\......n\“. = o

[monc ._l_....._... Iff.........,."..w. - -
P =uoiBoias, oSt
i | o S T e s =L e D oSS

I

_,_

HE Sopae 4 R .
| p— — o — | By Lt O

4
-

[ R e o

|

% Jll{l-;q :
l

|
|
I
I

o

|
i

iy

It
It
R Iq‘\ i
\
\
zabolh

I
)

h .'rl(slf)l

\\0
@ -.:.'Gi,\m,(_\;hah? RN
B\eiiia

\\}#«/ : e = R0 e VLT AR Ry 3.
L S . 27 /SR TS =
=40 NP
LXK

\O\/\ s ))\.\. (f\“\fw.ﬂ

NG .c«w@.\ﬂ\\/ SR

vvdn i

£ PR

; RNk A R | s > )
’ 24 ~L (- ; ..\., .... g II_I_Ilr -t d\l\)......‘.u.. ;
N RS S L = — [.u.“\ O
R #s /(hﬂm/u.o.wuw\\yf..\.\"\\ \%//am. o : == \ o
§%%A9/ ,\/\»//.. VA ! finared] r%\\, o

e

19

(Flgure 20, Downtown Medical Marlhuana Overlay Districts)




square Lako ROy s

0.7 1.05

0 0.§760.35

(Flgure 21, Medical Marlhuana Overlay Distrlct Map)

20



Ieatheiwood

-
=
=
= , 5
e —— — = = —E2SIWRY i
! i
1 i
. : e ————3pagebaege-——— m
~— —Hildale---~- | : _ :
' m - - s l'll.llllll-llnltl'lll}l n--..- w
i omeeeaner i Miclanc—-2 E 2
/ = n._l 4_ s
y < , | ﬂ
'] | , o ’
~—Raymonc-—- , e e
7 m e —— — £~ —-Clfiffor e
' g 12
” o] = _ IE
s ek B D L 2 '

21

(Flgure 22, Silverdome Industrlal Park Medical Marlhuana Querlay Distrlcts)




——

ufjsop i

Pa3zcock
Clzra

; : i
b b ‘
4)
0. 1 ,
o 2 2 :
| ;
: I
1 1 1
ﬁcg_i i
O I
& : i
5] Alral= |
(¢} poomt Bl Ldu:rc '
i o
i | i -8 i
i R
: . i
1 i«
' i ‘ i
pleoeg -
i piosuog)
o Bollmore ;
ﬁ jv . Alpino!
o ! gl i
; 7 |
1 i
e _p—— i | ) !
1 : } ' ! 1 ' i ! '
i I . ) 1 5Tt ' ] i i i
) I Ve biibo | : i : !
i I 9} . ' ! !
. ba ; o
i L8 i ¥ !
! | i ; :
! ! ! 3 N :
i ' ' ! i ]
& - Baldwln ! i '
; W i
o, -
% | i f Q 4 ! i
u3 3 i (@] | i
- i & i l u i :
- i p'oomlﬁl,ou} I i i P8
sl Loy : % g 2 |
i 55 ! . X i H
) }‘ 8) ;(*2 | 52 8 : ;
' i % ‘ L LB T |
% 6 & § . L2 '
g = - - ' ;
g !4 % T B oy .0 Carlsler ]
e % 8] i P =
' 2 k- : ! | &5 i
) & ' B ' 5 <
./c.’/ -2.0 | f @ o f-:
3 = B & .
: ‘ i @ i ; '
! : A D
; : 1 Stanloy
' ’ |
L ' Ui " Moadoy
) Yt L o
2 £ /‘7""46‘9/ ' | Ghor tylaven
g T
3 . Cloval

P - Columbiza-

Miles
08

03 .04

0 0.0750.13

(Flgure 23, Walton Blvd. Medlcal Marlhuana Overlay Distrlcts)

22




Pursuant to Pontiac City Charter Provision 3.112(e), thls Is an EMERGENCY ORDINANCE to regulate the
proliferation of medical marihuana facillties within the City of Pontlac and thereby ensure the health
and safety of its resldents, and shall be given immediate effect.

ADOPTED, APPROVED AND PASSED by the City Councll of the City of Pontlac this
, 2019,

day of

Delrdre Waterman, Mayor

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the Ordinance as passe hy the Clty Council on the
day of , 2019,

Garland Doyle, Interim Clty Clerk

I further certify that the foregolng was published in a newspaper of general circulation In the City of
Pontlac In a manner consistent with the Charter of the City of Pontiac.

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk

23




Ordinance 2

?%ﬁm Cdy

CITY OF PONTIAC Z&f g B IV KA\»

ORDINANCE NOs, 1' % \q

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF PONTIAC ZONING ORDINANCE TO INCLUDE USES OF MEDICAL
MARIHUANA FACILITIES IN DESIGNATED OVERLAY DISTRICTS.

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS:
Article 2 Chopters 1 and 2 Section 2,101 Table 1 and Section 2.203 Table 2 Zoning Districls is amended-lo

added;
|_“ ‘Ganeral Zoning
Abbreviation Districts Ahbreviatlon [Speclal Purpose Zoning Disiricts

- booe

I'o Rernaln The Same = _

To Remaln The Same :
wvonD Madlcal Marihuana Overlay Districts

Amend Article 2 | Chapter 2 - Section 2.203 Table 2 {Uses Permitted By District), Not inore than five (5)
Medlcal Marlhuana Provisloning Center Facllitles are to be located in any one of the three MMOD

overlay distrlcts, described In Section 3.1106.

Ccmnnercla!
Distilels
5 P

o Principal Permitted Uses

illrPage

a




Artlcle 2 Chapter 5 - Development Standards for Spacific Uses is amended to add Sectlons 2,544,

2.545, 2,546, 2.547, and 2,548 as follows:
Section 2.544 - Medical Marlhuana Grower Facllitles
Grower means a comimerclal antlty that cultivates, drles, trims, or cures and packages marihuana for

sale to a Processor or Provisloning Center, as defined in the Medical Marthuana Facility Licensing Act

- (“MMFLA”). As used In this ordlnance, Grower shall Include Class A Growers, Class B Growers, and Class

C Growers.
1. Class A Grower means a grower licensed to grow not more than 500 marihuana plants.
2, Class B Grower means a grower licensed to grow not more than 1,000 marihuana plants,
3. Class C Grower means a grower licensed to grow not more than 1,500 marihuana plants.
A, General Provisions .
1. Consur.nption, smoking, and Inhalation of marihuana andfor alcohol shall be prohibited

on the premises of Medical Marlhuana Grower Facllity, and a sign shall be posted on the
premises of each facllity Indlcating that consumptlon Is prohiblted on the premises.

& The premises shall be open for lnspectfon and/or Investigation at any time by City

Investigators during the stated hours of operation and as such other times as anyone Is present e

on the premises. )
3 All activity related to the Medical Marlhuana growing shall be done Indoors.

4, Any Medical Marihuana Grower Facility shall maintain a log book and/or database
identifying by date the amount of Medical Marlhuana and the number of Medical Marihuana
plants on the premises which shall not exceed the amount permitted under the Grower license
Issued by the State of Michigan. This log shall be available to law enforcement personnel to
confirm that the Medical Marihuana Grower does not have more Medical Marihuana than
authorized at the location and shall not be used to disclose more information than is reasonably
necessary to verlfy the lawful amount of Medical Marihuana at the Facllity.

5 The Medlcal Marihuana Grower Facllity shall, at all times, comply with the MMFLA and

Ja
the rules and regulations of the Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs — Bureau of
Marlhuana Regulations (“LARA”), as amended from time to time. ' o

B. Séeurlty

B 2[Pege




C.

"D,

i Medical Marihuana Grower Facillty shall continuously monitor the entire premises on
which they are oberated with surveillance systems that include security cameras that operate
24-hours a day, 7-days a week. The video recordings shall be maintained In a secure, off-site
location for a period of 30 days, and must be coordinated with the Oakland County Sherriff
Department. '

2, Any usable Medical Marihiana remaining on the premises of a Medical Marlhuana
Grower while the Medical Marihuana Facllity is not In operation shall be secured in a safe
permanently affixed to the premises,

Space Separation

1 Unless perrmitted by the MMFLA, public areas of the Medical Marihuana Grower Facility

must be separated from restricted or non-public areas of the Grower Facility by a permanent
barrier.

2. - Unless permitted by the MMMA, no Medical Marihuana Is permitted to be stored or
displayed In an area accessible to the general public.

Nulsance Prohibited

1. Medlcal Marlhuana Grower Facllities shall be free from Infestation by insects, rodents,
birds, or vermln or any kind,

2, Medical Marihuana Grower Facilities shall produce no products other than useable
Medical Marlhuana intended for htiman consumption.

3 No Medlcal Marihuana Gro;.ver shall be operated in a manner creating noise, dust,
vibration, glare, fumes, or odors detectable Lo normal senses beyond the boundaries of the
property on which the Medical Marihuana Grower is operated.

Licensing

1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the premises of a
Medical Marihuana Grower Facilily.

Disposal of Waste
1 Disposal of Medical Marihuatia shall be accomplished in a manner that prevents it’s

acquisition by any person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in conformance with
State law. '

2, Litter and waste shall be properly removed and the operating systems for waste
disposal are maintained in an adequate manner as approved by the-City so that they do not

constitute a source of contamination In areas where Medical Marlhuana's exposed.

3|Page_




3, That portion of the structure where the storage of any chemicals such as herhicides,
pesticides, and fertilizers shall he subject to inspection and approval by the local Fire
Department to ensure compliance with the Michigan Fi;e [’rotection Code.

G. Signage

1, It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with State and local laws

and regulations.
2. It shall be prohiblted to use advertising mmaterial that Is misleading, deceptive, or false,

or that Is designed to appeal to minors or in violation of LARA regulations.

3. It shall be prohibited to use the symbol or Image of a marihuana leaf in any exterior
building signage.
4. No licensed Medical Marihuana Grower shall place or maintain, or cause to he placed or

maintained, an advertisement of imedical marihuana in any form or through any medium:
i. Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private
elementary, vocational, or secondary school; and ’
il. Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center, bubiic swimming
pool or a church or other structure in which religious services are conducts,
H. . Co-Lacation
1. There shall be no other accessory uses permitted within the same facility other than
those associated with a Processor and Prévis[anlng Center.
2. M(l[ﬁple Class C licenses may be stacked In the same facility as defined by the MMFLA,
a_nd shall only be considered as one facility for the purposes of this subsection, provided that a
separate application fee Is pald for each Class C license.

L. Building Design
1, Eloors, walls, and ceilings shall be constructed in such a manner that they may

adequately cleaned and kept clean and in good repalr,

2; Any bulldings; fixtures, and other facilities shall be maintained In a sanitary condition.

3. All necessary building, electrical, plumbing, and mechanical permits shall be obtalned
for any portion of the structu-re in which electrical wirlng, lighting and/or. watering devices that

support the cultivation, growing or harvesting of marihuana are located.

Sectlon 2.545 - Medlcal Marihuana Processor

4|Page




~

Pracessor means a commercial entity that purchases marihuana from a grower and that extracts resin

from the marihuana or creates a Marihuana-infused produi:t for sale and transfer in package formtoa

Provisioning Center,

A,

General Provisions '
1 The Processor shall comply at all times and In all circumstances with the MM FLA, and

the general rules of LARA, as they may he amended from time to time.

2, Consumptlon, smoking, and inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be prohibited
on the premises of Medlcal Marihuana Processor, and a sign shall be posted on the premises of
each Medical Marihuana Processor Indlcating that consumptlon Is prohibited on the premises.
3. . The premises shall be open for Inspeétron and/or investigation at any time by City
investigators during the stated hours of operation and as such other times as anyone is present
on the premises.

4, Any Processor Facllity shall maintain a log book and/or database identifying by date the
amount of Medical Marlhuana and the number of Medical Marihuana prodiict on the premises
which shall not exceed the amount permitted under the Processor license Issued by the State
of Michigan. This log shall be available to law enforcement personnel to conflrim that the
Pracessor does not have more Medical Marihuana than authorized at the locatlon and shall
not be used to dlsclose more Information than Is reasonably necessary to verlify the lawful

amount of Medical Marihuana at the Facillty.

5. Pracessor Facllities shall nhot produce any products other than those marlhuana-infused

products allowed by the MMFLA and the rules promulgated thereunder,

Security ‘

1. Medical Marfhuana Processor Fa.cility shall continuously monitor the entire premises on
which they are operated with surveillance systems that Include security cameras that operate
24-hours a day, 7-days a week. The video recordings shall he maintained in a secure, off-site
locatlon for a period of 30 days, and must be coordinated with the Oakland County Sherriff
Department.

2. Any usable Medical Marihuana remaining on the premises of a Medical Marihuana
Processor while the Medical Marihuana Facllity is not In operation shall be secured in a sale
permanently affixed to the premises, 0

3. All Medical Marihuana shall be contained within the building in an enclosed, locked

I'acility in accordance with the MM FLA, as amended.

S5|Page




D,

‘Space Separation

1, Unless permitted by the MMFLA, publlc areas of the Medlcal Marihuana Processor

Facllity must be separated from restricted or non-public arcas of the Processor Facllity by a

permanent barrler,
2. Unless permitted by the MMFLA, no Medical Marihuana Is permitted to be stored or

displayed in an area accessible to the general public.

Ntilsanca Prohibited

1. Pracessor Facilities shall be free from Infestation by insects, rodents, birds, or vermin or
any kind. B
2, No Medlcal Marihuana Processor shall be operated In a manner creating noise, dust,

vibratlon, glare, fumes, or odors detectable to normal senses beyond the boundaries of the
property on which the Medical Marlhuana Processor fs operated.

LicensIng
1 The license required by this chapter shail be prominently displayed on the bremises of a

Medical Marihuana Pracessor Facility,

Disposal of Waste

1. Disposal of Medical Marihuana shall be accomplished in a manner that prevents its
acquisition by any person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in conformance with
State law.

2, Litter and waste shall be properly removed and the operating systems for waste
disposal are maintained In an adequate manner as approved by the Cily so that they do not
constitute a source of contamination in areas where Medlcal. Marihuana Is exposed.

Slgnage
1. It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with State and local laws

and regulatlons.
2. It shall be prohibited to use advertising materlal that Is misleading, deceptive, or false,

or
that Is designed to appeal to minors or In_vlolatlon of LARA regulatlons,

3. It shall he prohibited to use the symbol or irage of a marihuana leaf In any extertor
huilding signage. ) ' 7 ’

4. No licensed Medical Marihuana Processor shall place or maintain, or cause to he placed

or maintained, an advertisement of medical marihuana in any form or through any medium:

6|Page




I Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private

elementary, vocatlonal, or secondary school; and

Ii. Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth cénter, publlc switmming

pool or a church or ather structure in which religlous services are conducts.

H. Co-Location
1 There shall be no other accessory uses permitted within the same facility other than

those associated with a Grower and Provlsioning Center,
e The dispensing of Medlcal Marihuana of Medical Marihuana at the Pracessor Facility
shall be prohibited.

. Bullding Deslgn
1. Floors, walls, and ceilings shall be constructed in such a manner that they may

adequately cleaned and kept clean and In good repair.

2. Any huildings, fixtures, and other facillties shall be maintained in a sanitary condition.

Sectlon 2.546 - Medical Marlhuana Provisloning Center

Provisloning Center means a commerclal entity that -purchases marlhvana from a Grower or
Processor and sells, supplles, or provides marthuana to reglstered qualifying patients, directly or
through the patients' registered primary caregivers. Provisioning Centers includes any commercial
property where marihuana Is sold at retail to registered, quallfying patients, or registered
. primary caregivers.  A- nonconnmercial location used by a primary caregiver to assist a qualilying
patient connected to the careglver through the department's mariluana registration process in
accordance with the MMMA is not a Provisioning Center for purposes of this ardlnanca:

A, General Provisions -
1. Medlcal Marihuana Provisloning Centers shall be closed for business, and no sale or

other distribution of marihuana In any form shall occur upon the premises between the hours of

10:00 p.n. and 7:00 a.m,

9 Consumption, smoking, and Inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be prohibited

on the premises of a Medical Marihuana Provisionlng Center, and a sign shall be posted on the

premises of each Medical Marlhuana Provisioning Center lndicatjﬁg that consumption is

prohibited on the premises.

7|Page




F.

3: The premises shall be open for Inspection and/or Investigation at any time by City
investigators during the stated hours of operation and as such other times as anyone Is pres:ent
on the prémises.

Security
1. Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers shall continuously monitor the entire premises

on which they are operated with surveillance systems that include security camera-s that
operate 24-hours a day, 7-days a week. The video recordings shall be maintained In a secure,
off-slte locatlon for a perlod of 30 days, and must be coordinated with the Oakland County
Sherrlff Department. .

2, _Any usable Medical Marlhuana remaining on the premises of a Medical Marihuana
Provistoning Center while the Medlcal Marlhuana Provisioning Center is not In operation shall be
secured in a safe permanently affixed to the premises.

Space Separatlon
1, Unless permitted by the MMELA public areas of the'Medical Marihuana Provistoning

Center must he separated fram restricted or hon-public areas of the Provisioning Center hy a
permanent harrler.

2 Unless permitted by the MMFLA, no Medical Marihuana is permitted to be stored or .
displayed in an area accessible to the general public.

3. Medical Marihuané may be displayed in a sales area only if permitted by the MMFLA.
Nuisance Prohiblted '

1, No Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center shall be operated in a manner creating
nolse, d_ust, vibratlon, glare, fumes, or adors detectable to normal senses beyond the
houndaries bf the proparty on which the Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center Is 6perated.
Drive-Through -

1. Drive-through windows on the premises of a Medlcal Marlhuana Provisioning Center
shall be prohibited.

Licensing
1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the premises of a

Medical Maribuana Provisioning Centers.

2. All registered patients must present both their Michigan Medical Marihuana

patient/caregiver 1D card and Michigan state ID prior to entering restricted/limited areas or -~

non-public areas of the Medical Marihuana Provisloning Center.

8|Page




G. Dlsposal of Waste
L Disposal of Medical Marihuana shall be accomplished in a manner that prevents its

acquisition by any person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in conformance with’

State law.
H. Signage '
L It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with local laws of
regulations or State law.
2. [§ s_hali be prohibited to use advertising materlal that is misleading, deceptive, or false,
or that is destpned to appeal to minors or In violatfon of LARA regulations.
3. It- shall be prohibited to use the symbol or image of @ marihuana leaf in any exterior
huilding signage.
4, No licensed Medical Marlhuana Provisloning Center shall place or maintain, or cause to
be placed or maintalned, an advertisement of medical marihuana In any form or through any
medium: . '
i, Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private
elementary, vacatlonal, or secondary school; and
ii. Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center, public swirming
pool or a church or other structure In which religlous services are conducts,

I Co-location
1. There shall be no other accessory uses perrﬁitted within the same Facility other than

those assoclated with a Grower and Processor..

Sectlon 2,547 - Medlcal Marihuana Safety Compllance Facllity

Safety Compliance Facllity means a commerclal entity that recelves marlhuana from a medical
marihuana facllity or registered primary caregiver, tests it for contaminants and for etrahydrocannabinol
and other cannablnolds, returns the test results, and may return the marfhuana to a Medical Marihuana
Facllity.

A. General Provisions
1. Consumptlon, smoking, and inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be

prohibited on thie premises of a Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility, and a sign shall

o 9|Page




be posted on the premises of each Medical Marlhuana Safety Compliance Facility indicating that
consumptlon Is prohibited on the premises.

2, The premises shall hﬁ open for Inspection and/or investigatlon at any time by City
investigators during the stated hours of operation a‘nd as such other times as anyone Is present
on the premises. )

3. Any Medical Marihuana Safetﬁ Compliance Facility shall maintain a fog book and/or a
database Identifylng by date the amount of Medical Marihuana on the premises and form which
particular source, The Facility shall maintain the confldentiality of qualifying patients In
compliance with the MMMA, and MMFLA, as amended, ’

Security
1, Medlical Marlhuana Safely Compliance Facility shall continuously monitor the entire

premlises on which they are operated with surveillance systems that Include security cameras
that operate 24-hours a day, 7-days a week. The video recordings shall be maintained in a
secure, off-site location for a period of 30 days, and must be coordinated with the Oakland
County Sherriff Department.

72 Any usable Medical Marlhuana remalning on the premlses of a Medical Marihuana
Safely Compliance Facllity while the Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility is nbt In
operatlton shall be secured in a safe permanently affixed to the premises.

3. "All Medical Marihuana shall be contained within the building in an enclosed, locked
Facllity in accordance with the MM FLA, as amended.

Space Separation .
i ¢ Unless permitted by the MMFLA, public areas of the Medical Marthuana Safety -

Compliance Facllity must be separated from restricted or non-public areas of the Safety
Compliance Facility by a permanent barrier.

2. Unless permitted by the MMFLA, no Medical Marihuana Is permitted to he stored or
displayed In an area accessible to the general publlc.

Nulsance Prohibited N

1, No Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility shall be operated Ina manner
creating noise, dust, vibration, glare, fumes, or odors detectable to J_mrmal senses beyond the
boundaries of the property on which the Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility is
operated. N

Licensing

10| Page




1 The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the premises ofa

" Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility.

2 All registered patients must present hoth thelr Michigan Medical Marihuana
patlent/caregiver 1D card and Michigan state 1D priorto entering restricted/limited areas or
non-public areas of the Medical Marihuana Safety Campliance. Facility.

Disposal of Waste

4 Disposal of Medical Marihuana shall be accamplished in a manner that prevents its
acquisition by any person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in conformance with
State law.

2. Litter and waste shall be properly removed and the operating systems for waste
disposal are maintained In an adequate manner as approved by the city so that they do not
constitute a source of contamination In areas where Medical Marihuana Is exposed.

Slgnage )
1, It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with State and local laws

and regulations.
2 1 shall be prohibited to use advertising materlal that is misleading, deceptive, or false,
or that is designed to appeal to minors or In violation of LARA regulations.
3, It shall be prohibited to use the symbol or Image of a marlhuana leaf In any exterior
building slgnage.
4, No llcensed Medlcal Mar_lhunna Safety Compliance Facllity shall place or maintaln, or
cause to be placed or maintained, an advertisement of medical marihuana In any form or
through any medium:
I Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private ’
elementary, vocational, ar secondary school; and
ii. Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center, public swimming
pool or a church or other structure in which religious services are conducts.
Bullding Deslgn

1. Floors, walls and ceilings shall be constructed in such a manner that they may

adequately cleaned and kept clean and in good repair,

2. Any buildings, (ixtures and other facilities shall be maintained In a sanitary condition.

Section 2,548 - Medical Marihuana Secure Transporter

11|Page




Secure Transporter means a commerclal entity located In this state stores marihuana and transports

marihuana belween medical marihuana facilities for a fee. A Secure Transporter shall comply at all times

with the MMFLA and the rules promulgated thereunder,

A

o

D.

General Provislons

1, Consumption and/or use of marihuana shall be prohiblted al a facility of a Sécure
Transporter,
2., Avehicle used by a Secure Transporter is subject to administrative inspection by a law

enforcement officer at any point during the transportation of medical marihuana to determine
comptiance with all state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances.

3. ASecure Transborter licensee and each stakeholder shall not have an Interestin a
Grower, Processor, Provisioning Center, or Safety Compliance Facility.

4, A Secure Transporter shall enter all transactions, current Inventory, and other

informatlon as required by the state Into the statewide monitoring system as required by law.

Secure Storage

1, Storage of medical marihuana by a Secure Transporter shall comply with the following:
P The storage facility shall not be used for any other commerclal purpose.
L. The storage fécllltv shall not be open or accessible in the general public,

iil. The storage facllity shall be malntained and operated so as to comply with all
state and local rules, regulations and ordinances. —
2. All marlliuana stored within the facility shall be stored within enc!dsed, locked facilities
in accordance with the MMFLA, as amended.

Sanitation
1 All persons working In divect contact with marihuana heing stored by a Secure

Transporter shall conform to hyglenic practices while on duty, inéluding but not limited to:
i Maintaining adequate personal cleanliness, _
il Washing hands thoroughly inadequaté hand washing areas before starting work
_and atany other time when the hands may have become soiled or contaminated.
ili. Refrain from having direct contact with marlhuana if the person has or may
have an illness, open lesion, includipg holls, sores, or infected wounds, or any other -

abnormal source of microblal contaminatlon, until the condition Is corrected.

Disposal of Waste

12|Page




F.

1, Disposal of medical marihuana shall be accomplished In a manner that prevents Its
acqulisition by a person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise In conformance with
State law. -

2. Litter and waste shall be properly removed and the operating systems for waste

disposal are maintained in an adeqt}ate manner as approved by the Clty so that they do not

cons_!ltute a source of contamination in areas where medical marlhuana Is exposed.

Transport Driver _

1, A Secure Transporter shall comply with all of the folloiv]ng‘:

l. Each driver transportiﬁg marlhuana must have a chauffeur's license issued by the state.
il. Each employee who has custody of marlhuana or money that is related.to a
marihuana transaction shall not have been convicted of or released from Incarceration

' for a felony under the laws of this state, any other state, or the United States within the
past five (5) years.
ilI. £ach vehicle shall always be operated with a two-person crew with at least one
Indlvidual remalining with the vehicle during t{\e transportation of marihuana.
2. A route plan and manifest shall be entered Into the statewide monitoring system, and a

copy shall be carried in the transporting vehicle and presented to a law enforcement office upon

request.
3. The medical marihuana shall be transported by one or more sealed containers and not

be accessible while In transit.

4. A secure transporter vehicle shall not bear markings or other indicatlon that itls

carrying medical marlhuana or a marihuana Infused product.

Sighage
1 It shall be prohibited to display any slgns that are inconsistent with local laws of

regulations or State law.
2 It shall be prohibited to use advertising material that Is misleading, decaptive, or false,

or that is deslgned to appeal to minors or in violation of LARA regulatlons.

3, ft shall be prohibited to use the symbol or iImage of a marihuana leaf in any exterior
building sighage.
4, No licensed Medlcal Marihuana Secure Transporter shall place or maintain, ofcause to

be placed or maintained, an advertisement of medical marihuana In-any form or through any

medium: -

13| Page




i Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private
elementary, vocatlonal, or secondary school; and
I Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center, public swimming

pool or a church or other structure in which rellgious services are conducts.

Article 3 - Speclal Purposes - Zoning District Is amended to add Chapter 11 as follows: Chapter 11-

Medlcal Marthuana Districts

Sectlon 3.1101 — Intent

The purpose of the Medical Marfhuana Overlay District (MMOD}) Is to provide for the placement of
Medical Marihuana related uses as authorized pursuant to State regulations with a goal of minimizing
potential adverse Impacts on adfacent property owners, neighborhoods, and the City.

Section 3.1102 - Medical Marlhuana Overlay Distrlct Princlpal Permitted Uses

The following are principal permitted uses in the Medical Marihuana Overlay District, provided the
development also meets the Design & Building Standards set forth in Section 3.1109 and Article 2
Chapter 5 Development Standards for Speciffc Uses:

Provisloning Center;

‘Safety Compllance Facllity;

1

2

3 Secure Transporter,
4,  Grower;and

5

- Processor.
Sectlon 3.1103 - Madlcal Marlhuana Ovetlay District Permitted Accessory Uses

1. OH-Street Parking, Loading and Unloading as required per Section 4.307; and

% Any use that is not incldental to the permitted principal use.

Sectlon 3.1104 - Medlcal Marihuana Overlay District Principal Permitted Uses Requiring Site Plan

Review

14 |Page




All principal permitted uses of the MMOD are subject to Site Plan Review set forth In Article 6, Chapter

2, Sectlon 6.202.

Section 3,1105 ~ Licensing

All operators of medical mari}iuana facllities must obtain a State of Michigan & City of Pontiac License.

Section 3,1106 - MMOD Location Description

The Medical Marlhuana uses permitted in the MMOD must meet the following requirements:
A. OVERLAY #11: All properties along Walton Blvd and streets north of Walton Bivd between the

west side of Telegraph Road to Joslyn Avenue including those contained within Overlay Map 1 for this

MMOD.
a, Not more than five (5) licenses to operate a Provisioning Center shall he awarded in this

Overlay District #1.
B. OVERLAY 112: Maintain frontage along Cesar Chavez, starting from the west side of West Blvd In

the City of Pontiac to northern side of W, Montcalm St., also including:

1. Pershing Ave;
2, Durant Ave;
3. Inglewood Ave; and

4. 0Jista Ave,
Not more than five (5) licenses to operate a Provisloning Center shall be awarded in this Overlay District

112. See Overlay Map #2 for this MMOD.

C: QVERLAY i3: All properties within C-2 Downtown zoned district,
a. Not more than five (5) licenses to operate a Provisloning Center shall be awarded In this

Overlay District #3.
Sectlon 3.1107 - Permitted Uses in Commerclal Districts (Non-Overlay)
In addition to MMOD Localions as described in Section 3.1106, all medical marihuana uses, excluding

Medical Marihuana Grower and Processor, are permitted in C-0, C-1, C-3, C-4, M-1 and M-2 districts
subject to all requirements under this Chapter 11, including but not limited to Section 3.1108 - Buffer

15| Page




Distance Restrictions. There shall be no more than five (5) Medlcal Marthuana Provisloning Centers
allowed in all of C-0, C-1, C-3, C-4, M-1 and M-2 districts combined, and shall be awarded based on the
highest scoring applications recelved for those proposed-qualifying locatlons that are not in one of the

three Overlay Districts described in Section 3.1106 above.

Sect'lan 3.1108 - Buffer Distance Restrlctlons

A, The proximity of the proposed medical marihuana facllity shall not be less than:
1. 1,000 feet from an operational public or private schodi;
2. 500 feet from an operational commerclal childcare organization (non-home

occupation) that is licensed and registered with the State of Michigan Department of Health and -

Human Services or its successor agency;
3. 500 feet from a public park with playground equipment;
4. 500 feet from a religious institution that is defined as tax exempted by the Oakland

County Assessor; and
5. Applicable only for properties located in a C-0, C-1, C-3, and C-4 Commerclal and M1 and

M2 zoned districts:

I. 200 feet-f'rom a residential-zoned property. Notwithstanding anylhlr;g
contained within Sectlon 3.1107. B to the contrary, such distance between a resldentlally-zoned
property and the contemplated location shall be meas‘ured at right angles.

B. Such distance hetween the school, childcare center, public park, or religious Institution, aﬁd the
contemplated location shall be measured along the centerline of the street or streets of address
hetween two fixed points on the centerline determined by projecting stralght lines at right angles to the
centerline from the primary point of Ingress to the school, childcare center, or religious Institution, or
from the playground equipment in a public park, and from the primary point of Ingrass to the medlcal

marlhuana facility along the centerline to the primary site entrance driveway

Sectlon 3.1109 - Co-Locatlon

A, Consistent with the MMFLA and rules promulgated by the department, any combination of

Growers, Provisioning Centers, and Processors may operate as separate medical marihuana facilities at

- the same physical locatlon;

t6|Page




B, A maximum of two medical marthuana facillties with state operating licenses may co-locate on a
* single parcel;

C. No two medical marlhuana facilitles of the same type may be located on the same parcél;

D.  Medical Ma‘rihuana Provisloning Center, consistent with the MMFLA, any combination of
Grower, Processor, and Provisloning Centers may operate as separate medical marlhuana facillties in the
physical location. Provided that the Provisioning Center is Incidental to the principal use and that the

total amount of Internal floor areas of the structure locate to the Provisioning Center does not exceed

20% of the floor area of the total establishment;
Section 3,1110 - BulldIng Deslgn, Area, Height, Bulk, and Placement

A, Building and design improvements must comply with the underlying 2oning requirements and
the Specific Uses Development Standards outlined in Article 2, Chapter 5 of this Zoning Ordinance.

B. If the provislons of the MMOD are sllent on bullding and deslgn requirements, the requirements

of the underlying district shall apply.
C. if the bullding and design requirements of the MMOD conflict with the requirements of the

underlying district, then the building and design requirements of the MMOD shall supersede the

underlying district regulations.
Sectlon 3,1111- Revlew Authorlty and Establishment

A, The Planning Commission shall be the Speclal Exception and Site Plan Review Authority for the

permitted medical marihuhana uses In the MMOD;
B, A Special Exception Permit for medical marihuana uses require Public Notice of 500 feet from

the proposed medical marihuana facllity;

of All permitted medlcal marihuana uses must be in accordance with the Uses Development

Standards outlined in Chapter 2 of the Zoning Ordinance;
D, Within the MMOD all requirements of the underlying districts remaln in effect, except where

these regulatlons provide an alternative to such requirements.

hY

Article 7 - Definitions Is amended to add Chapter 2, and Chapter 3 as follows: Artlcle 7 - Deflnitions |

Chapter 2

17| Page




Sectlon 7.202 Commerclal, Office, and Servlce Uses

A Préﬁlslonlng Center means a commercial entity that purchases medical marlhuana from a
Grower or Pracessor, and sells, supplies, or provides marihuana to registered qualifying patients, directly
or through the patfents' registered primary careglvers, Prowslo'nlng Canters Includes any commercial
property where marihuana is sold at retail to reglstered, quam’ylng_patients or reglstered primary
careglvers,

. 1. A noncommerclal locatlon used by a primary caregiver to assist a qualifying patlent
connected to the careglver through the department's marihuana reglstration process In
accordance with the MMMA Is not a provisioning center for purposes of this ordinance,

B. Safely Compliance Facillty means a commerclal entity that receives marlhuana from a medlcal

- marthuana facllity or registered primary careglver, tests it for contamlnants and for
tetrahydrocannabinol and other cannabinoids, returns the test results, and may return the marlhuana to
the medical marihuana facility. '

C. Secure Transporter means a commercial entity located In this state that stores marihuana and

transports medical marihuana between medical marihuana facilities for a fee,
Section 7,203 - Industrial Uses

A. Grower means a commerclal entity that cultivates, dries, trims, or cures, and packages
marihuana for sale to a Processor or Provisloning Center. As used In this ordinance, Grower shall
include Class A Growers, Class B Growers, and Class C Growers. ‘
a Class A Grower imeans a grower license to grow not more than 500 marihuana plants.
b. Class B Grower means a grower license to grow not more than 1,000 marihuana
plants.
c. Class C Grower means a grower license to grow not more than 1,500 marihuana
planls.
B, Processor means commercial entily that purchases marlhuana from a grower and that extracts
resin from the marlhuana or creates a Marihuana-infused product for sale and transfer in package form

" to a Provisioning Center.

€. Provisioning Center means a commercial entity that purchases marihuana from a Grower or

18| Page




Pracessor, and sel!&, supplies, or provides marlhuana to registered quallfying patients, directly or
through the patients' registered primary caregivers. Provisioning Centers Includes any commerclal
property where m_nrlhuana Is sold at retail to registered, qualifying patients or registered primary
caregivers.
a. A noncommercial location used hy a primary caregiver to assist a qualifyng patlent
connected to the caregiver thrc‘)ugh the department's marihuana 'reglstratlon process n
accordance with the MMMA Is not 4 provisloning center for purposes of this ordinance.
D. Safe_zty Compllance Facllity means a commercial entlty that recelves marihuana from a medical
. marlhuana facility or registered primary caregiver, tests it for contaminants and for
tetrallydrocanna'blnol and other cannabinoids, retums‘» the fest resuits, and r'pay return the marlhuana to
the madical marihuana facility, .
E. Secure Transporter means a commerclal entity located in this state that stores marihuana and

transports marihuana between medical marihuana facllities for a fee.
Article 7 - Definltions | Chapter 3

Sectlon 7.301-General Deafinltions

A, Medical Marlhuona Facility means a location at which a Grower, Processor, Provisioning Center,.

Secure Transporter, or Safety Compliance Facllity is llcensed to operate under the MMFLA.

B. MMLFA means the Medical Marihuana Facilitfes Licensing Act, Act No. 281 of the Public Acts of
2016, being Sections 333.27101 to 333,27801 of the Michigan Compiled Laws,

C. MMMA means the Michigan Médical Marihuana Act, Initlated Law 1 of 2008, being Sections

333.26421 to 333.26430 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

Pursuant to Pontlac City Charter Provision 3.112(e), this is an EMERGENCY ORDINANCE to regulate the
proliferation of medlcal marihuana facilities within the City of Pontlac and thereby ensure the heaith

and safety of ils residents, and shall be given immediate effect,

ADOPTED, APPROVED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Pontiac this day of
| 2019, '

19|Page:




Deirdre Waterman, Mayor

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk

I'hereby certify that the foregolng Is a true copy of the Ordinance as passed by the Cit'y Council on the
. day of 2019, ’ '

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk

| further certify that the foregoing was published In a newspaper of general circulation in the City of

Pontiac In a manner consistent with the Charter of the City of Pontiac,

Garland Doyle, Interlm City Clerk

20|Page




